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About the IEC

Established in November 2012 and supported by the four Hong Kong’s financial
regulators, the Investor Education Centre is a dedicated organisation with the
mission of improving financial literacy in Hong Kong. It aims to better equip the
general public with the skills and knowledge to make informed financial decisions
and manage their money wisely through the provision of comprehensive, credible
and impartial financial information, tools and education resources.

REEHBHDOLEN

REEHBEHROUN2012F 1M AR - RURABSELRNERIE
HEMENNEEHRE  WEFBNESHEEREXS - REE
HEHRLEXREBRMEE IERETRAENESREMENR - TA
NHBEER  BARZESMEBIAFNNBNERD - eMELE
REBNMBRE  YREZEEEBCHUE -




Contents B &

14

16

19

22

62

Message from the Chairman FENE

Message from the General Manager BEE N E

About the IEC REZEHE P OB
Executive Committee EREES

The IEC at a glance 2014-15 2014-15E 81 &
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect ERE

Financial Literacy Forum & W B AN AR RN RBE D R

Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy =8 S mbIE B A0 A BE D SR R

20 30

Education Campaigns Working in and with
and Resources the Community

BEEBRER EEHLE BFHEH

46 02

Working with Stakeholders
and Partners
Bi5RE R B
EEREE

Research and
Evaluation

MR et

Financial Statements B #& 3R 3R



2

Message from the Chairman
FENE

Taking the lead in financial education

Since its establishment in November 2012, the Investor
Education Centre (IEC) has built a solid foundation for
taking a leading role in financial education, including
coordinating the joint efforts of various stakeholders in
the community to improve the public’s financial
knowledge and capability.

One of the many achievements over the past year was
the publication of our research on Understanding
Financial Literacy in Schools, which has proved to be
essential to gauging the challenges facing our future
education work. Another was our education campaign
on Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, a ground-
breaking arrangement that gave investors mutual
access to the Mainland and Hong Kong markets for
the first time.

Our education initiatives also included a flagship TV
drama series that focused on real-life stories to address
the capability gaps that exist in everyday financial
situations. In addition, we developed a suite of
interactive tools to cater for the public’s various financial
needs at different life stages and we expanded our
workshops and other outreach activities to serve
different community groups.

Hong Kong Strategy for Financial
Literacy

The highlight of the year was our inaugural Financial
Literacy Forum in November 2014 at which the
Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy (HKSFL)
was proposed. The forum acted as a platform for
cross-sector collaboration and sharing of experiences
on how to address the financial education needs of
people in Hong Kong. Many organisations supported
the proposal and requested that the IEC take a
stronger lead in coordinating financial education
efforts. This is a responsibility we are more than
happy to accept.
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Given its mandate to provide financial education on

all aspects of money management, in 2015 the IEC
started to develop the framework for the HKSFL, the
first initiative of its kind in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. After reviewing the financial
education initiatives throughout Hong Kong as well

as international practices, we are confident that

with concerted efforts and support from various
stakeholders, we will make this exciting yet challenging
task a success.

Our objective is to establish a coordinated mechanism
among stakeholders to achieve common goals, avoid
duplication and maximise resources, while providing
guidance and a platform for professional development.
It is only through such a territory-wide framework as the
HKSFL that the IEC can ensure the efficiency and
relevance of its financial education initiatives and make
a long-term impact on the level of financial literacy in
Hong Kong.

Finally, | would like to thank all our stakeholders,
including members of the Executive Committee, the
Advisory Committee and the Advisory Groups as well
as the Government, financial regulators and friends of
the IEC for their invaluable support and contributions
over the past year. | would also like to thank the IEC
team for their hard work and dedication. | am confident
that with continued hard work by the IEC and
collaboration with the community, we will achieve our
financial education goals in the near future.

oty OA

Professor Cheng Kwok Hon Leonard
Chairman, Investor Education Centre

June 2015
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Everyone deserves impartial
financial education

It has been a privilege leading the IEC since June
2014. | must congratulate both the IEC Executive
Committee and the IEC’s current staff for establishing
such a sound and focused organisation. We are well
resourced and structured to take on future challenges.

| also want to specifically acknowledge the efforts and
leadership Miles Larbey provided our organisation in
the first year following the IEC’s establishment.

Impartial financial education is essential. Everyone
deserves to have access to balanced and accurate
information when making decisions about money
management.

Not everyone is naturally inclined to improve their net
worth over a lifetime. Some start the process very
early and build wealth consistently; others have
different life priorities and don’t focus too much on
money management. Neither course of action is better
or superior to the other, but what is clear is that
encouraging everyone in society to establish financial
goals and then providing the resources to help people
meet those goals, allows individuals, their families and
the society they live in to enjoy significant benefits.

Opportunity to effect behavioural
change

Hong Kong is one of the world’s leading financial
centres. The whole population needs to be aware and
encouraged to take action regarding the preparation
required to enjoy financial freedom throughout life. If
we can motivate more people to take appropriate
action with their finances it will assist this great city

in retaining its status as a leading international
financial centre.
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The Investor Education Centre has enjoyed
considerable success in the past 12 months. This is
largely due to the energy and goodwill we receive
from our stakeholders, which want the IEC to be
successful. It is also due to the passion and
commitment the IEC team brings to work every day.

Many innovative initiatives have been trialled in the
past year. Going forward, our strategy again focuses
on achieving the organisation’s core mission “to
equip the public with the skills and knowledge to
make informed financial decisions and manage their
money wisely’.

We can't achieve our mission in isolation. We must
work with partners across several sectors and align
with those who share the same values and belief in
improving Hong Kong'’s financial literacy.

I’'m looking forward to the coming year a great deal.
There is a lot to get done, but it should be noted
again that it is because of the high level of interest
and support for the IEC to be successful that
progress on many current challenges will be made.

The opportunity to effect change on a population’s
behaviour for any issue is rare and must be treated
with care. The IEC is ready and with your continued
support we will achieve what so many want and need
us to do.

aobore

David Kneebone
General Manager, Investor Education Centre

June 2015
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About the IEC
REEZEHEHDLEN

Since the 2008 global financial crisis, financial education has been an
important complement to market conduct and prudential regulation. In the
last 10 years, improving people’s financial knowledge and behaviour has
also become a long-term policy priority in many countries.
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The IEC was established in November 2012 as a dedicated REEHBHRON2012F11 AR » 2EE
organisation to cater for the financial education needs of Hong EETRANESHENHEEENESEHKE
Kong people across the entire financial sector and improve their HEERERELRHE  UWEATENSHE
financial knowledge and capability. IR AEE H BT o

Its founding followed a public consultation by the HKSAR BEERBERORYIA 0 BESRTREEA
Government in February 2010 and the subsequent amendment of 201052 B = RMEIR (BT BEIER) 1
the Securities and Futures Ordinance in May 2012 to broaden the DB . HATAD012ES B 55T BIES] -

statutory mandate of the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC)
to conduct investor education covering myriad financial products
and services.

Ek%’é‘%&ﬂﬁ?ﬁ‘i%ﬁ%?ﬁ%ééﬁ (REE)
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K R A%

Who we are

A 1 3 A \

Supported by the four Hong Kong’s financial regulators, we are a public organisation
dedicated to helping Hong Kong people improve their financial knowledge and capability.
Established as a subsidiary of the SFC, the IEC is fully funded by the SFC with no extra
levies or charges on the industry or investors.

REEZEHETORUBRATBLAORNESHENNBNENAEPNEELEHRE  WREE
MEEMEERBESRF REEZEFLNIRESHNERE  HEBXHBES N
BARRAIREEWNBEIMEREA -
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Who we work with

SRR \

We work closely with government agencies and the finance, education and community
sectors to help the general public make informed and sound financial decisions.

HMREBTHE SRR  BEAREEERSHE  HHARELBRERASNTH
RTE ©

What we do

T fFsils h

We provide comprehensive, credible and impartial financial information, tools and
education resources; organise free seminars available for public participation; tailor
activities addressing specific financial education needs, and offer capacity-building
services and support for social workers and teachers.

HMRHE2E - TERETFAENSHENEN  TARYEER . BEHREBEELR
20 HETEAEREYHAEFTENERETE @ LRESHEN NBNRENRBENE
T TR ZE o

- J
More than two years on, the IEC is now well-placed to lead the REEZEHBEROBIBBMT  RECER
development of the Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy whiE > EE4E [ BE LIRS AR
covering financial education in all aspects of money management. EE | RESREMSSENSE T/E -

It is our job to support the public in making informed and sound REEESERASREENETSM4EY
financial decisions about important events in their lives and to EAREN RSB RGATE - 12 FHb Ryt
strengthen their financial skills to better prepare them for life’s risks

BI7 RAEFHERMERBSMHMELERS

and shocks. B o
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Executive Committee
EREET

8

The IEC is governed by an independent Executive Committee comprising
a Chairman who is a Non-Executive Director of the SFC, representatives of
the four financial regulators — the SFC, the Hong Kong Monetary Authority,
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority and the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance — as well as a representative of the financial
industry and of the Education Bureau and the General Manager of the |EC.
It meets once every three months to provide strategic oversight and advice
to the IEC and approve its policies and decisions.
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Professor CHENG Kwok Hon, Leonard
Chairman

From 19 October 2012
Current appointment
expires on 18 October 2015

Professor Cheng is Chairman of the Investor Education Centre, President of
Lingnan University, a Non-Executive Director of the Securities and Futures
Commission, and a member of Hong Kong’s Competition Commission,
Economic Development Commission, and Independent Commission on
Remuneration for Members of the Executive Council and the Legislature,
and Officials under the Political Appointment System of the HKSAR.

Prior to joining Lingnan University, Professor Cheng was Dean of the School
of Business and Management of the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology from 2009 to 2013. He has published papers in many leading
academic journals in economics, and served as an associate editor of the
Journal of International Economics and Pacific Economic Review.
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Executive Committee
ERERE

KNEEBONE, David Philip From 23 June 2014

General Manager Current appointment expires
on 18 October 2015

Mr Kneebone is General Manager and an Executive Committee member of the
Investor Education Centre. Prior to taking up the role of General Manager,

Mr Kneebone worked for eight years at the Commission for Financial Capability
(CFC) in New Zealand. From 2010, Mr Kneebone was the Executive Director of
the CFC. He has managed a wide range of programmes including workplace
financial education, community pilots and the Sorted programme, which features
an award winning website that over one-third of the New Zealand population has
used to manage their money.

Internationally, Mr Kneebone is actively involved in sharing his experiences and
insights on retirement income issues and financial education. He is a member
of various Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development and
International Organization of Securities Commissions committees focused on
developing financial literacy initiatives and research. His background experience
includes marketing, advertising, telecommunications and banking.
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CHAN Sun Hung From 19 October 2012

Office of the Commissioner of Insurance Cuirreit Qe @qaies
on 18 October 2015

Mr Chan has joined the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance (OCI) for over
20 years and is now Acting Assistant Commissioner of Insurance of the Policy
and Development Division. Mr Chan has been involved in the supervision of
Hong Kong’s insurance companies, both life and non-life, in different positions
at OCI. The scope of his experience has spanned all aspects of insurance
regulation, including prudential supervision of insurers, formulation and
promulgation of regulatory policies on the insurance industry, as well as liaison
with international and Mainland regulatory authorities.

PRE H120124 105 19 H #
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CHAN Tze Ching, Ignatius From 19 October 2012

. Current appointment expires
Industry representative on 18 October 2015

A veteran banker, Mr Chan started his career with Citibank in Hong Kong in 1980.
Before his retirement from Citibank in 2007, he had held various senior management
positions in Asia Pacific, including Country Officer for Hong Kong, Country Officer
for Taiwan and Head of Corporate and Investment Banking for Greater China.

Mr Chan currently is Senior Advisor to The Bank of East Asia Limited and CVC
Capital Partners. He is also actively involved in community and public service,
serving as a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the Financial Reporting
Council, the Standing Commission on Civil Service Salaries and Conditions of
Service, Hong Kong Red Cross Council and the Community Chest of Hong Kong
and as Deputy Chairman of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr Chan also
sits on the Boards of several listed companies including the Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited.
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CHENG Yan Chee From 9 May 2013

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority Ocnur;:néig %Z:Z;j’;t expires

Mr Cheng joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority (MPFA) in
April 2013 as Chief Corporate Affairs Officer and Executive Director. He oversees
the corporate affairs and development functions of the MPFA, covering the work of
the Corporate Services, Information Technology and External Affairs Divisions as
well as the Liaison Unit.

Mr Cheng was a member of the Administrative Service of the Hong Kong
Government from 1986 to 2013, serving as Administrative Officer up to Deputy
Secretary in various government bureaux and departments responsible for
financial services, education, information technology services and welfare.
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Executive Committee
EREE®

CHU Lap Kiu, Carmen From 1 September 2014

Hong Kong Monetary Authority Current appointment expires
on 18 October 2015

Ms Chu, Executive Director (Banking Conduct), is responsible for the
supervision and development of business conduct of authorised institutions,
licensing matters, financial consumer education, and oversight of financial
market infrastructures. She joined the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (HKMA)
in 1994 as a Manager Trainee, and has taken up different responsibilities in
the HKMA, including research and monetary operations. She was seconded to
the World Bank Office in Beijing from 1998 to 1999. Since then she has mainly
been involved in international and regional financial cooperation initiatives as
well as renminbi business development in Hong Kong. She was appointed as
Executive Director (External) in April 2010 and took up her current position in
September 2014.
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LEE Sha Lun, Sheridan From 17 February 2014

Education Bureau Current appointment expires
on 18 October 2015

Mr Lee is Principal Education Officer (Curriculum Development) of the Education
Bureau in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Mr Lee joined the
government in 1984 as a school inspector. Over the years, he has been in
leading positions covering English language education, curriculum
development, educational television, quality assurance as well as the
certification and professional development of teachers and principals.

Mr Lee is currently the Chairman of the School Management Committee of
three government schools. He is committed to bringing about the betterment of
education in Hong Kong.
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WAN Chi Yiu, Andrew From 19 October 2012

Securities and Futures Commission Current appointment expires
on 18 October 2015

Mr Wan is Chief Financial Officer and Senior Director (Corporate Affairs)

of the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC), overseeing finance and
administration, corporate planning, human resources, information technology
and external relations. He is responsible for formulating and executing
corporate strategies to improve the SFC’s regulatory capability and
effectiveness.

In his over 25 years of extensive financial and business experience, Mr Wan
worked with leading professional firms and served as chief financial officer of
listed companies in Hong Kong and Canada. He holds Bachelor of Commerce
and MBA degrees and is a member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong.
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LEE Wing Sing, Vincent From 19 October 2012
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (00 AuEt 20T

Mr Lee was Director-General (Enforcement) of the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority until 31 August 2014 and was responsible for enforcement,
financial consumer education and complaint handling.
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Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect
ERE

The ground-breaking cross-boundary investment channel establishing mutual
stock market access between the Mainland and Hong Kong was announced

in April 2014 and launched in November.

HN2014F4 AR - BEREMS R S5 E @K OBER) RRIF11A
HEH o LLIRFAISEMNBRKRERE AEREMONIREEAEBLH TR

R -

A short video was broadcast and
promoted via various channels to remind
the public of the points to note for trading
A shares via Stock Connect.

EREEFEBRAERERRBES » WRE
TREBEESEEEARSTZIEMNILS o

To facilitate investor education in both markets, the IEC and the
Investor Protection Bureau of the China Securities and Regulatory
Commission (CSRC) established a cooperation arrangement in
which the IEC focused on Stock Connect education for northbound
Hong Kong investors and the CSRC targeted southbound Mainland
investors.

The IEC’s education work highlighted key issues from the
perspective of retail investors, in particular the different rules and
regulations and trading and settlement arrangements in Hong Kong
and the Mainland, as well as the risks involved in cross-boundary
investment. The public were also reminded to be aware of the
differences in investor protection law, taxation, fees and charges
between the two markets.

Various education and communications initiatives were launched to
help investors understand the pilot scheme before entering a new
market. These included mass media campaigns, the IEC website
and outreach activities.

Mass media campaigns

The IEC set up an ongoing series of mass media programmes that
included an education video, radio segments, expert interviews,
column articles and advertorials.
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A Quick Guide to Hong Kong'’s
Financial System and Services
booklet was distributed and a series
of advertorials was published in key
Chinese and English newspapers.
K3 (RET B REIEMRE) M
Fo WAETEEFR RXBEFIZE—F
N | JINEEHREE -

The IEC Chairman and General Manager also gave interviews on Hoh s BRPTZHARPOEERALE E7
Stock Connect, as did various market experts and representatives AT URESRMENERNELAZNAE

from financial institutions and associations. FBEESEREEEERENEBER -

A booklet entitled A Quick Guide to Hong Kong'’s Financial System BRAENEE BT RN ERERERE CURER
and Services, giving an overview of the financial regulatory system SREEMRE) MIT > NAEESRMES
and financial services in Hong Kong, has also been made available SRS BUARIE o

to the general public as well as visitors to Hong Kong.

pi - .
IEC website BWEEHE SO
A hot topic article, Getting to know Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock FEEBBARM B LA - NP OFEIEBRKRT
Connect and the Mainland stock market, posted on the IEC EEXE [REEEBERAMKREDS ] I
website prior to the launch of the pilot programme, has attracted 51323 15,000 AR BIE -

strong interest and recorded nearly 15,000 page views. o
ERESRTEIESHS AMEBEN

To facilitate investor access, a dedicated sitelet (www.hkiec.hk/ BEREE  RENER  BM18108#EH
stockconnect) providing a source of comprehensive and centralised =8485 (www.hkiec.hk/stockconnect)

information about Stock Connect was launched on 10 November LI EEERBHNAEEN  BEREE
2014, immediately after the joint announcement by the SFC and TRESENKEEE » WiELASIY

CSRC of the St.ock Connect start.date. Hyp(.a.rllnks to the websites @it HEEEN S REEREE o
of relevant parties were also provided to facilitate cross-border
sharing of investor education information.

REEHBTO2014-15F3, 17



Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect
ERE

T
2ol
[ e i e e iy S

Tnvestment

The sitelet www.hkiec.hk/stockconnect covers
information such as investor protection and rules,
major risks, distinct differences of the trading
arrangements of both stock markets, features and
risks of the Mainland stock market, a glossary and
frequently asked questions.

Free educational seminars for the general public drew over 930 participants. RAZHBFOMEBBEERE (www.hkiec.hk/
Sy BRERE R EH030 8RS - stockconnect) RELEAR - BEREERERE

£ TERER  MitRERZZHNER] - RibRT K
SHRER  ARRREREES -

Outreach activities HINRIE B
In collaboration with the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing LA REEERZN2014598 F
Limited, the IEC hosted a series of four educational seminars for 1280 SRS RENEHEE » RS

the general public from September to December 2014, which drew 930 A HHfE o

over 930 participants.

BEAREHEBBHGINE « BuER
EEREEEAREEEERNEZSH -
ARTSHSEERR - UREEESEN
ERRREERE R - ROEBERT
EITHRE » ERET89%SMERBHEM

The seminars gave an overview of Shanghai-Hong Kong

Stock Connect, explaining the key differences between trading
A shares via Stock Connect and trading Hong Kong stocks, the
characteristics and risks of the A share market and points to
note in relation to the programme’s rules and regulations and

investor protection. Surveys afterwards showed that 89% of RBIRE  65% RTEBEBBIREARE
participants felt the educational materials were appropriate, with EZMTHARRENER (BIEEERR) -

65% saying that they would seek more information about particular
stocks, including potential risks, when they invested in A shares via
Stock Connect.

EMR2015F3ARBREFHEREER
REMS00EREEEIT T —BRAE  EF
78% MIZhERTNEEHRBERE  BR

In March 2015, we also conducted a survey among 500 investors 2% S E X IR EEEEE FERE - A
who had held or traded stocks in the past year. Among these ASHERTHRFTRERNRERS
investors, 78% heard about Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, HEREBE SR ERENSE o AT
yet only 2% had traded Shanghai-listed stocks via Stock Connect. 519 SihE % 5 BB — % T RIERE -

The majority claimed they hesitated to participate as they felt they . e N g .
/L,\\éﬁlf‘f’aﬁ S 6= =

were not familiar with the Mainland stock market. However, 51% iiiﬁigguﬁqu;{ EE%E’J%IE A

were interested to learn more about Stock Connect. The IEC will R e

continue to provide support to aid their understanding.
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Financial Literacy Forum
& IR B AR A e 0w i

Over 150 leaders from the government,
finance, education and community sectors
gathered at the IEC’s inaugural financial
literacy forum on 10 November 2014 to
discuss promoting and improving financial
knowledge and capability in Hong Kong.

201411 H108  BEEHEFRLRREEE

S REIE R AN ABE S FRIB - IRSIEBA 15062k B
RRIFAR - BREBTET - &/ - #HE kA
EEMNERIHE  [ImiEEMSERTETR
M BUIE BT RIEEABE ) o

With the theme Advancing Financial Education through
Collaboration and Innovation, the forum sought to promote
dialogue, collaboration and sharing of ideas, issues, experiences
and best practices, while raising awareness and knowledge of
financial education issues and developments in Hong Kong.

In his keynote address, Professor K C Chan, Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury, highlighted the importance of financial
literacy and the socio-economic benefits it would bring Hong Kong.
He said financial literacy was an important pillar supporting
sustainable retirement systems, stable markets and vigorous
economies.

£ 1 gained a lot hearing
about the practices and
experiences in the
Netherlands. | hope that we
can learn about financial
education from western
countries so that we can
apply it in Hong Kong. 7

(L RTBT RN
BRHAEERNERH  Bi
B FERMEQAT

ERNERMBEHA L - Pinky Yung, Project Supervisor,
WHEEBNHEEE 7] Financial Education & Debt

Counseling Service, Caritas Family
Crisis Line & Education Centre
REOBHEREGREEPL
BE2EH REBHERY
HEFRSES

Improving
Financial
Literacy

Opening ceremony, from left to right: Professor Leonard
Cheng, Chairman of the IEC; Professor K C Chan,
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury,
HKSAR and Mr David Kneebone, General Manager of
the IEC

REEHEPOERBEERR (£) - BEBHIITHE
PREBREHEBRBRRSCRER (F) - ARREERE
OB S EET AL T EREREE o

£ € Today’s forum was excellent. It provided a
good platform for all the relevant stakeholders
to discuss financial literacy. 77

LESRMETIRY  BERRE—E
M REI ARMENNEERTE - )]

4 jg Y
ik
L
Dr Christina Yu, Associate Professor, Department of

Social Sciences, Director of School Partnership and
Field Experience, The Hong Kong Institute of Education

BEYAERULENERABRR R G FES R RAE
hiEfSE L

WIBLU [ RIH 24 BFHEBEVHE B
R SHEMEEHTE - IREHE - URR
2R BE ERRAWETESHENREN
RENE  BNRESTREESESHENHE
RIRE M 2% R MY BRIE R AN KT o

ERENEEERT  MEEBEREBRRE
R EH IR SRR AR NEEMN
REHABHENEEBRRONE  BRF
TRIEVHBERXEUHFERKSE - BE
MENESEEEDRRNERHM -
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Financial Literacy Forum
o B3R B AR A BE D i

L £ Financial literacy, more than a means to
promote consumer welfare, is emerging as an
important pillar, supporting sustainable
retirement systems, stable markets and
vigorous economies... | encourage you to join
us in supporting the work of the IEC in helping
to build financial literacy as both a right and a
responsibility for all of us. 59

CL&RBE MM D TBREMRTDEES
e BB AUFRRAGIE - BREMSNME
PBEEREDRRN—EEEXH - RBBAX
—BXEBREERE PO ED SRR AE
MEENNTE - BRERKMLREAERN
HE-J9

A _
H,

Building the financial literacy road map
together

Three interactive panel discussions were held to exchange ideas
on how to promote financial literacy in Hong Kong. By taking
reference from the experiences of overseas countries and latest
developments in the field, the first panel discussed how a
coordinated approach to financial education can help better allocate
resources and foster the right partnerships to raise financial literacy
levels in Hong Kong.

Guest speaker Mr Olaf Simonse, who is responsible for leading
the Money Wise Platform initiated by the Ministry of Finance in
the Netherlands, explained the changes in focus from knowledge
and awareness to responsible financial behaviour during the two
phases of his country’s national financial education strategy (2008
and 2014) and shared experiences on the challenges and lessons
learnt in implementation.

In his call for a coherent strategy for financial literacy in Hong Kong,
Mr David Kneebone, General Manager of the IEC, said it was time
to harness the enthusiasm, goodwill and strengths of stakeholders
from different sectors to set common goals that are conducive to
the future development of the city as an international financial
centre. As a result of the forum, many participants signed up as
supporters of the Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy.

Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2014-15

Diocesan Girls’ School teacher and students shared
their views on financial literacy.
RELZERNEMREBE D ZH S RIR R AN
HEE °

Professor K C Chan, Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury, HKSAR, delivered a keynote speech to over 150 attendees
who gathered to support financial education in Hong Kong.
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Jennifer Qiu, Diocesan
Girls’ School student

Speakers participated in an interactive panel
discussion on how to advance financial
literacy in Hong Kong.

S B B RIBEHNEERNMGERETR
SREBEHAERMENRZRER °

(14 They mentioned six or seven principles about behavioural
economics. It really made me reflect on my own behaviour, such as
often being very loss-averse and not good at calculations. We also
become intimidated by a lot of choices. It was really interesting to be
able to reflect on our own daily lives. 77

L MR AZLEBETASASNRE  BREARSHCH
B HIMEMEEHUEIREBEMNTENTE  TEREHAS
BEMPSEMELR - SEEERRMNYRACABLEFINTS
KEBHEEHL-I)

WL EREAE Jennifer Qiu

Advancing financial education in schools

The second panel Advancing Financial Education in Schools
comprised a mix of presentations, sharing and discussions with
representatives from the Education Bureau, the IEC, Citibank and
Diocesan Girls’ School. The IEC research study Understanding
Financial Literacy in Schools revealed that although there are
financial literacy elements in the current school curriculum, the
implementation is scattered across different subjects, while some
subjects are optional. Panelists discussed the roles of teachers,
parents, business sectors and the government as well as the
challenges in advancing financial education in schools.

Financial literacy and retirement planning

The third panel discussed the overall effects of financial education
on long-term savings and investments, especially retirement
planning (including the mandatory provident fund) and the role of
insurance in addressing longevity and risks for future medical and
health care. Hong Kong, like many other developed economies,
faces the challenge of an ageing population due to a low birth rate
and increased life expectancy. Financial literacy and retirement
planning are key elements that can help better prepare us for an
ageing society.
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Hong Kong Strategy for Financial Literacy
8 R B A A BE 0 R B

Hong Kong is joining many jurisdictions in improving its
population’s financial knowledge and capability through
the development of a coherent strategy to better

support the general public in making informed and

sound financial decisions.

FEDIMAERSNTTH - BT RIEMHER
RS - AR S RIRE R K Be 1) - A B

TELBREBENBENFHIRE

Financial literacy is widely recognised as an essential life skill and an
important complement to market conduct and prudential regulation. To
further advance financial education in Hong Kong, the IEC has taken
the lead in putting together the Hong Kong Strategy for Financial
Literacy (HKSFL) with support from the government as well as the
finance, education and community sectors. Last November, the IEC
held an inaugural financial literacy forum to advocate the benefits of

a more coordinated approach to financial literacy, which was very

well received.

Our shared mission

The HKSFL, the first of its kind in Hong Kong, aims to harness the
enthusiasm and strengths of various stakeholders by setting common
goals that address the financial education needs of the population. It is
also the first-ever framework for various sectors in the community to
work collaboratively to improve the net worth and overall financial
well-being of Hong Kong people.

Since the global financial crisis, Hong Kong has witnessed an
increasing and diverse range of financial education initiatives. The
development of a dedicated and coherent financial literacy strategy is
therefore important to ensure the relevance and efficiency of these
initiatives as well as their long-term impact on the level of financial
literacy in society.
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A more coordinated approach to financial literacy will help stimulate
momentum by achieving consensus on common objectives, avoiding
duplicated efforts, providing a platform for peer learning and best
practice sharing as well as supporting professional development. This
is conducive to the sustainable and sound development of Hong
Kong’s financial services industry.

Collaborative development

Since February 2015, the IEC has been implementing some key steps
to prepare the framework of the HKSFL, including a thorough review
of existing financial education initiatives, available research and
international practices.

Throughout, there will be a process of consultation with stakeholders to
define roles and responsibilities. The aim is to create a formal structure
for governance, strategic planning, coordination and implementation,
as well as community-wide awareness, communications and
engagement.

Finally, an evaluation framework will review areas of impact and
improvement to help ensure the strategy is sustainable, measurable
and practicable.

FEBEMARBASREYHE - BHRMARLE
BRENHE BRT/FER - RREXZEEMN
DERB—EFE  URZFHEE
R tMEDEBERMRBERNSERE
Y

REE

BRET ) HEBER

H20155 2R - REEHRAEHP L EESHE
I REIEEBREIEFEE  EdE
REREETBRITHESREVHEEE
HENAREMERERS -

EEEBET  RESEARHENER
HEAGEEE  BARRIERES
NEEEEER - RHMEL  AEREN
HEREREN  UREDE REERKES
T

Rtk - RIPGETE - I BRMNER
A TRENE - DURR [ EBRE] ZUE
AT - REAFEBR A EEKNY

REEHBTL2014-15F4, 23






Get ready

Fung Ka Keung, teacher

GET $ET GO! Money

Management Workshop

participant

G ]

[GET $ET GO! |
BTS2 &

" b
Financial education should start as early as possible with both
teachers and parents playing an important role in developing the
financial literacy of the next generation. The game-based
GET $ET GO! Money Management Workshop featured different
financial scenarios such as buying shares, earning money or
making a donation. It not only motivated the students to discuss
and learn, but also served as a good reference for us as teachers.

SRENHRAEEEMG  HREBET RN SmEI AEMEED -
HEAMRRILBEEME - UERBARN [GET $ET GO! | BB TEH
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Education Campaigns and Resources

HERBRER

The IEC uses the mass media and other communication platforms to
provide a wide range of financial education information. We encourage
Hong Kong people to take active steps to improve their financial
knowledge and skills so they can achieve their life goals.

LEEREROMARREELEMEMRE  RHEzNEREMHE
Bl YEBESTREERET B HNEBABMNKEE - WERTRN

AERR -

Learning to cope with life-changing events

The IEC believes that financial education initiatives should meet
the needs and financial literacy levels of target audiences, and
address their preferences about how to receive financial
information. Life stages and events are catalysts for promoting
responsible financial behaviour. Understanding which life events
are most relevant to target audiences and providing suitable
education messages and resources are therefore key to improving
efficiency and effectiveness.

Over the past year, we piloted new formats and channels to
engage target audiences and get our messages across. For
example, we produced an insightful TV drama series entitled
Once Upon a Dime, based on real-life stories of everyday financial
situations, to help address the most common gaps in the financial
knowledge and capability of Hong Kong people.

In addition, to further extend our reach and motivate people to
acquire financial knowledge and skills through self-learning, we
enhanced the content of the IEC website with a full suite of
interactive tools that cater for the public’s various financial needs
at different life stages and events.

Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2014-15
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IEC Chairman Professor Leonard Cheng gave an interview about points

that retail investors should note concerning the Shanghai-Hong Kong

Stock Connect in September 2014 on Commercial Radio’s Crosstrade
financial programme.
REEHEPOEEHEERRN2014FO A EZHES/AUERHE [ AEXINE]
S REMFREESHEBSBEEFT IR

Media coverage is another way to raise public awareness of the
IEC and recognise the organisation as the focal point in providing
credible, impartial and comprehensive financial information. To
facilitate this, IEC Chairman and General Manager have given
regular interviews on a wide variety of topics, including the pilot
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect programme and tips on
various aspects of money management.

Award-winning TV commercial

Our TV commercial Think before you Invest, received international
recognition for its creativity, winning an Award of Distinction in the
Public Services category of the Annual Communicator Awards
organised by the Academy of Interactive and Visual Arts.

The video, first shown in 2013, featured heroic characters from the
ancient novel Romance of the Three Kingdoms to promote prudent
investing attitudes in a multimedia education campaign. Among
viewers, 89% agreed that the creative concept attracted their
attention and 67% liked it, while 82% responded that they could
spontaneously recall the key message “reminding the public of
things to note before investing”

The award-winning Think before you Invest video encouraged
the public to adopt responsible attitudes towards investing.
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Education Campaigns and Resources

BEEBRER

Milestone education campaigns and
resources

Once Upon a Dime

According to /EC Research: Knowledge, Attitudes and Behaviour
towards Money and Debt Management, nearly half of Hong Kong
people (48%) do not have a personal budget. At the same time,
19% of borrowers fail to make debt payments on time. Young
people also tend to borrow money due to the ease and
convenience of obtaining credit cards and personal loans.

Armed with these figures and observations from frontline social
workers who often help individuals and families with debt and
money problems, the IEC used real-life stories of ordinary people
to roll out a TV drama series, entitled Once Upon a Dime and
co-produced with Radio Television Hong Kong (RTHK), to increase
awareness and more importantly to inspire behaviour change.

The series focused on themes including money and debt
management, saving, investing, and financial and retirement
planning. The eight episodes attracted an audience of over 650,000
aged 18 or above. An evaluation survey conducted among the
general public showed that 79% of viewers claimed the drama
motivated them to review their money management habits and
64% agreed it prompted them to look for more information
regarding personal finance.
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The real-life TV drama series encouraged people to set clear
and realistic financial goals through stories about the good
and bad sides of money management.
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What participants learned from
Once Upon a Dime pre-screening workshop

[ERRRE ] ERSEETSNELS

L& The pre-screening workshop reminded me of the importance X
of living within my means. | will take action to regularly track my

expenses via the IEC’s online tools and app. Financial planning
knowledge is necessary for everyone. To plan for my future, | will be
proactive in acquiring more related skills and knowledge. J9

L ERYZERBREBINBENEER N - RERAREEHE
POME L TANERRAEMCHENAERX - BEAR
FE2BEBEBARE - BT REARK  RERBEBEZEEA
BB RERI NG - 7))

Lee Chak Hong, tertiary student
TER ELB4E

L€ The TV drama reminded me of the negative impact
of impulsive spending. | will make more effort to shop
around and compare prices at different retail outlets
before buying anything. It will be good if the IEC
provides more education on prudent investing. 59

(LEEERPBRAOBFHHENEELE - S
BYREEREEL = LRTEABENEESE
B MRREEHAPURARHESAREERE
WHEEH - E=—HFE-)

Rosaline Tse, housewife
HEE REEXR

£ € | make a budget plan every month to track
and better manage my expenses as inflation
drives up the cost of living. The TV drama
further reminded me of the importance of using
credit cards wisely and settling bills on time. 59
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Chan Wai Fong, retiree
BREF - BIKAL
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Education Campaigns and Resources
HERBRER

A new video series entitled Investment Training with
Kung-fu Master 2014 featured TV and movie star John
Chiang as the kung-fu master delivering financial
education messages.

2H [REWR2014] BHRIIBFEBAZRERERDR
B aEREESRENAERES -

Investment Training with Kung-fu Master

To address knowledge gaps and promote better understanding of
topical financial products and investment fundamentals, we
launched a second series of short videos entitled Investment
Training with Kung-fu Master 2014.

The new version took place in a home setting with the kung-fu
master in discussions with his wife, son, daughter, friends and
other people from different walks of life on different topical issues.
In light of the latest market and product developments, the

new videos covered different education messages, including the
risks associated with trading virtual commodities such as bitcoin,
and points to note when trading shares through the Shanghai-
Hong Kong Stock Connect. Apart from the video episodes,

we continued to disseminate our messages in various media,
providing guidance and tips on popular topics such as IPOs,
renminbi products, crowd-funding and dividend distribution

of funds.
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Celebrities shared their views on
the role of insurance.
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Smart tips on insurance

Insurance plays an important role in financial planning by providing
financial protection and coverage against unforeseen incidents and
other risks in life. In August 2014, the IEC launched a campaign to

enhance the public’s understanding of insurance through print and
online media as well as public seminars.

A series of advertorials entitled Smart Tips on Insurance was
produced jointly with the Ming Pao Newspaper. In addition to the
dos and don’ts of buying insurance products, the advertorials
featured celebrities who shared their views on the role of insurance
in their own financial planning to increase relevance and inspire
behaviour change.

In September 2014, the IEC also conducted two public seminars in
collaboration with Hong Kong Federation of Insurers and HKU
School of Professional and Continuing Education. The first seminar,
themed Dealing with Critical lliness, presented cases which
highlighted the impact that critical illnesses can have on a family’s
financial health and included a question-and-answer session. In the
second seminar, themed Growing with Our Children, experts and
parents discussed child development and the role of insurance in
family financial planning.

The images are provided by Ming Pao.
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Education Campaigns and Resources

BEEBRER

IEC website and interactive tools

The IEC website (www.hkiec.hk) provides a full spectrum of
information and tools relating to all aspects of personal finance,
including banking, insurance, investing and retirement planning, to
assist the public with their financial decision-making and learning. From
April 2014 to March 2015, the IEC website recorded 1,389,346 page
views and attracted 404,996 users*, an increase in usage and traffic of
21% and 65% respectively compared with last year.

In addition, the IEC has launched a suite of user-friendly and
interactive digital tools to help the public plan, review and manage
their finances anytime, anywhere. The new tools and one mobile
app include:

Net Worth Calculator

Weigh up your assets and debts and
check out how good you are at managing
your wealth.

Financial Health Check

Assess your financial health and get a free
analysis report and action plan for
improvement.

Retirement Planner

Work out your retirement budget and get
action plans.

Money Tracker app

A mobile app to help you plan, budget and
track your expenses and income anytime,
anywhere.

Learn more about the IEC’s calculators and mobile app.
THREMNESEAZN TARRBERER -
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Other campaigns and resources

Explaining investment-linked assurance schemes

We explained the latest regulatory measures in relation to the
disclosure of ILAS intermediary remuneration through a short video
and other initiatives. The public were reminded to be particularly
aware of the total fees and charges disclosure in product key facts
statements.

London gold-related scam awareness

Following media and police reports about members of the public
being victims of financial fraud involving Loco-London Gold, the IEC
conducted education initiatives on how gold and gold-related financial
products and scams work, the regulations governing gold trading in
Hong Kong, and to warn people about unsolicited calls for trading
Loco-London gold.

The IEC contributed regular articles to various
media to educate the public on hot financial topics.
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The images are provided by Sing Tao Investment Weekly,
Choice Magazine and Wen Wei Po.
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Get ready

» A VN
% @ *‘a Hu i Chan Yuet Ping,
1)) V] A\ secondary student
GET $ET GO! Money

= =X W
*E *nli l!‘lg %‘ Management Workshop
5> 12A Fi participant

WA hE4
[GET $ET GO! |
BMIESSmE

| didn’t have a clear concept of money matters because
my parents gave me everything | needed, but after the
workshop | realised the importance of saving and | will
start to cut unnecessary spending from now on. | want to
learn more about financial planning and | hope my school
organises more similar activities.
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®
Working in and with the Community
EEHLE BFED

The IEC works closely with key stakeholders and community partners to
improve financial literacy in Hong Kong and maximise the reach of our
initiatives. We reach out to the general public through activities such as
seminars, workshops, community events and train-the-trainer modules. We
also tailor our education materials to address the specific needs of particular
target groups within the community, such as students and the elderly.

REEHETPLERIENFNEMERALREZAE  URABETRNEZRE
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In April 2014, after a series of consultations and pilot tests, we LB —RIINBAREAETE > RAEE
completed the development of new content modules for three FVE CEEBATREEZE=(A4EEEAN
selected target groups — youth, grassroots and elderly. In addition, FEI . 201454 B 525 45 SR RS W F
an evaluation was conducted to gauge the effectiveness of these RE o Mo » RAPEITERL » Ll T RS L
seminars and the information was then used to refine the content WstemRY > SR EEEE R LB = = 5

modules and teaching Kits. BRE R SEt o

Throughout the year, we conducted a number of public seminars

to broaden people’s financial knowledge on various key topics
such as investing, insurance and money management. These

FR o BRMBPT ZSARMANE - LUEE
mRHEKRE  RREMEEESEESRIEN

@ B (4t b =3 2 YA
included co-hosting a Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect “%LEEIHD“EEL Eqﬂ@t{%gﬁ\g’%xgﬁﬁ” R
investor education seminar series with Hong Kong Exchanges NEBE | REEAFBE

and Clearing Limited.
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In collaboration with the Open University of Hong Kong and the
Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts, three public seminars were
held in April 2014, July 2014 and January 2015 attended by about
1,000 participants. Financial professionals shared their views on
financial market trends and the latest product developments.
BMEEENHABREBUESMMBEEE - R201454 8 ~ 20145F
7R RK201551 B &8P — 58 - HIKS[41,000A 20 - HI5HHE
ATEE LD ZMMH ST ESRRBERENEMERBRNEE

Segmentation for effective outreach

Instead of adopting a ‘one size fits all’ approach, the focus of our
community work going forward will be on target groups with higher
priority to maximise the effectiveness of our work and inspire
behaviour change within those groups. We believe that when
people experience different life events, they will be motivated to
acquire specific financial information that suits their needs — and
this will lead to greater opportunities for behavioural change.
Therefore, segmenting the market not only allows us to educate
more effectively, but also to build up expertise and a better
understanding of the target audiences, which will help us react
more quickly to environmental changes.
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Working in and with the Community
EEME BFED

Schools

An IEC research paper Understanding Financial
Literacy in Schools, published in November

2014, provided us with valuable insights and
recommendations to support and promote financial
literacy teaching and learning.

It is essential to improve the competency of teachers in promoting
the delivery of financial education in schools. Resources and
activities were developed to assist teachers through seminars
entitled Learning and Teaching Strategies for the Business,
Accounting and Financial Studies (BAFS) Curriculum Series and
Enriching Knowledge for the BAFS Curriculum Series.

The seminars shared related knowledge on teaching topics such as
Stock Trading as an Investment, which is a newly restructured
compulsory part of the curriculum, as well as improving teachers’
ability to impart knowledge on consumer credit and financial
planning. The two workshops for training teachers on how to use
the BAFS teaching resources included a Stock Trading Guru board
game and supporting teaching materials. Enrolment was filled
within a short period of time demonstrating the very strong need for
such activities. The workshops also generated an overwhelming
number of requests for more copies of the Stock Trading Guru
board game for teaching purposes.

Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2014-15

GET $ET GO! Money Management Workshop
[GET $ET GO! | E8f T4eth

Bi%

BEEHEROR2014F 1 ARE (BRER
MERBHHE) BEWR - RLERRE
BRI SR AR T 5 RIS A
i -

ARSEMERBRETSRIEMHEMNEED
BRSR REERIER B EEENHEER
AR BB [ % - SeTEBBER | BEHK
BRI [ b3 - SEtEMBER | AEES
RIS - DHERERE -

MaEn [UESRSERE | (B LRBER
RImHFHLER D) SRED ZHEMHE
LU EHE R 2L B HEFE R RE
FEBAFIGRAVEED © BEID - 5 A5 B ZAm 62 A
[3€ - et B sHim | #ur (B3 [RE
EA]REER) WIES  EREEERARESR
BRw REBETERZE [ BUEEA ]
REBRERZZRA - A RAMPEEREE
BENEMFREBREY]



£ 1 used to spend rather than save. After taking

part in the workshop, | now understand more about
needs and wants and I'm interested in learning more
about investing. | have set my first financial goal —

buy fewer snacks and save. | enjoyed the game-based
format of the money workshop.

CCHRBERENE  RERHE  BESMIESE
HE[FEINRE ] FERANRDR - XHERBS
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ZRABHREFE - RESBTESRARRNERELR
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(€ The workshop not only disseminated useful
education messages about financial planning,
but also covered other important aspects
relating to my life stages such as getting a job,
investing, etc. | enjoyed the workshop so much
that | have now set my first financial goal — to
build my first saving plan.J9

(L THEGTEEEEBMERBNEREN
BREHMERAERRESEENERESS
WRE - REE - RO EBE@ETHES  RE
RO AENE—EHHERE  BRMAKHE
EETE )

The teaching resources have helped equip secondary school
students with essential financial knowledge for them to develop
correct financial management attitudes and habits. In follow-up
surveys, 93% of students responded that the resources increased
their interest in learning about the financial topics on the curriculum.
Similar resources and activities will be developed in the future.

The IEC also developed financial education activities directly
targeted at students in schools. In addition to education talks, we
used game-based initiatives to motivate students to adopt a healthy
attitude towards personal finances. We trialled the GET $ET GO!
Money Management Workshop covering the essential financial
literacy elements of Life and Society in the junior secondary
curriculum at several schools.

Teachers from all the participating schools agreed that the
workshop was effective in teaching students about financial
management and arousing their interest in financial matters.
Immediately after the workshop, the students showed improvement
in understanding key financial concepts and issues such as needs
and wants, saving habits and investing. A group of students who
participated in the focus group, which was held about two months
after the workshop, could still recall the workshop’s key money
management concepts and had started developing healthy financial
habits. Having gained positive responses from both students and
teachers for creating a real-life simulation environment where
students can practise common financial transactions, the workshop
will be scaled up in the upcoming academic year.

Kwok Tsz Ho (left),

Chau Wai Man (right),
secondary student

GET $ET GO! Money
Management Workshop
participant
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Working in and with the Community
EELE BFED

To raise awareness of personal finance among tertiary students, the IEC reached out to freshmen from
five tertiary institutions during their orientation camps.

REFREENEAETER - RIOELEREBARA LD ST B - B8 1548 o

[ >

Youth

Whether young people are in tertiary education
/ or entering the workforce, as they gain financial

¢ independence they face many important money
management issues such as budgeting, using credit responsibly,
paying rent or saving up for a down payment.

During the year, we cooperated with various tertiary institutions to
organise a number of outreach initiatives to raise awareness of
personal finance among young people. Building on this, we will
develop in-depth programmes that seek to change their behaviour
when dealing with personal finances.

Five orientation camp programmes were held in tertiary institutions
for freshmen to encourage using credit wisely and controlling
expenses. Over 50% of the participants expressed an intention to
change their financial habits after the programme.

For those who have just entered the workforce, we provided
seminars on financial management for newly recruited police
cadets among others. Workplace programmes like these can also
deliver financial education to those who are planning to retire.

We participated in the Education and Careers Expo 2015, which
included a talk entitled Money for Your Further Studies and an
exhibition booth to provide practical information on issues

such as preparing for tax payments, mandatory provident fund
management, and budgeting when starting work. Over 72% of
those who visited the IEC booth agreed that the information helped
them to understand more about financial matters in preparation for
their first job or future studies.
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To promote the benefits of expense tracking and the use of
the newly developed IEC Money Tracker mobile application,

we organised a fun-packed

Expense Tracking
programme at Tsuen Wan MTR

station in March 2015. Participants were encouraged to take the ey
first step in good money management and to download the :
Money Tracker app for their daily use. Fun booths were also set
up on different campuses to encourage students to learn more

about managing their money.

REEHA PO R ER R S A B R H R
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The IEC organised an education exhibition booth at the Education
and Careers Expo 2015 to promote the benefits of early financial
planning.
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Working in and with the Community
EEME BFED

L€ Financial knowledge is important for young adults like
me to better manage my earnings. | will exercise strict
discipline in saving regularly and acquire more knowledge
about investing to accumulate my wealth. Also, it's never too
early to start planning for retirement given that my career
has an early compulsory retirement age. 59
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A community event was
held in Kwun Tong featuring
game booths, performances
and interactive games to
encourage prudent financial
management.
EBRERHCRIEE - B8
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° Adults and grassroots

Money management for women, particularly
housewives, was the focus of a joint community
outreach programme with the Family Planning
Association of Hong Kong. It involved training 12 ambassadors with
financial knowledge in investment, insurance and retirement
planning to facilitate peer-to-peer delivery of financial literacy talks
to women in the community. The ambassadors agreed that the
programme enhanced their confidence in promoting financial
education and managing their personal finances. As one participant
said, “When I finished the workshop, | told my husband about
different types of insurance and we reviewed all our insurance
policies. We also called our insurance agent to understand more
about the policy details”

An IEC Community Event in Kwun Tong in March 2015 was aimed
at grassroots families to build their awareness of the importance of
money management and financial literacy through game booths
and performances. With the support of the Kwun Tong District
Council and local non-governmental organisations, the event was
attended by about 500 members of the public.
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Yan Chin Leung,

police inspector
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A series of seminars was co-organised
by the IEC and Hong Kong Police Force
to warn about the latest scams targeting
retirees.

HEEBERREH —RIBE - RESNE
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Elderly and retirees

With life expectancy in Hong Kong among the
longest in the world, the IEC is increasingly
involved in programmes and seminars with
various institutions and organisations who deal
with the elderly.

()

Over the past year, we extended the elderly seminars and
developed a financial literacy programme with The Institute of
Active Ageing of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Given the
positive feedback from the participants, a similar programme will be
rolled out to other elder academies. This programme will present a
comprehensive set of financial issues that senior citizens may face
and what actions can be taken to handle these challenges.

We also participated in the Elderly Job Expo organised by the
Hong Kong Society for the Aged to promote the need to properly
manage retirement funds including mandatory provident fund
benefits. In addition, the IEC co-organised a series of seminars
with the Hong Kong Police Force for members of the Senior
Police Call community programme that was set up to enhance
communication with the elderly in various police districts. The
participants learned about financial management and the latest
investment scams targeted at retirees.

Working with Radio Television Hong Kong, the
|IEC launched pre-screening workshops for the
Once Upon a Dime TV drama series to discuss
real-life money management cases.
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Get ready

The seminar made me realise that financial planning is

more than just saving. | have just got married and started a
new page of my life. It's time for me to monitor my investment
portfolio and consider appropriate financial protection for my
family. Having children is my next life goal and | will work out
a feasible financial plan with my wife.
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Wong Kwok Hung,
police inspector
Financial Management
Seminar participant
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Research and Evaluation
R

Ongoing research and evaluation is vital to the work of the IEC as it enables
us to assess genuine needs for financial education among different target
segments by identifying gaps in knowledge and capability. It also provides
insights into what is effective and therefore contributes to improvements in our
projects, programmes and the allocations of resources. Most important of all,
it helps to ensure that our work is making a difference to society.
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Regular thematic studies help us understand the capability gaps
that need to be filled in specific areas and we use them to steer
our education efforts. During the past year, we conducted three
thematic studies — Understanding Financial Literacy in Schools,
a Review of Financial Education Initiatives in Hong Kong and a
Qualitative Study among Financial Consumers who are New to
Hong Kong.

We also carry out campaign-specific evaluations of selected
initiatives to gauge their effectiveness and to collect feedback to
enhance them. These include consumer testing of new education
resources such as interactive tools prior to roll-out, as well as
post-campaign surveys on mass media campaigns and
community events.

In addition, we constantly monitor the market landscape with
regard to financial education initiatives and track global trends
in financial education to guide programme development.

Financial literacy is a complicated concept and measurement is
inherently difficult. Nevertheless, we are committed to adopting an
evidence-based approach to our work. First and foremost, we

have put in place an evaluation framework to provide increased
accountability and to guide recommendations for programme
development. The framework encompasses different aspects of our
work, with four interconnected components: assessing educational
needs, measuring the reach of our initiatives, gauging perceptions
towards our work, and ascertaining the impact of our efforts.

Guided by this evaluation framework, we aim to further enhance
our research and evaluation efforts in a number of ways. These
include studies to track shifts in financial literacy among the Hong
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IEC Evaluation Framework

REEHE P OAITHEIESR

Needs &

Assess the needs of the
target audience and how
best to meet them
FMHEEEIRNHAEFE
LUK ana] hn BABL &

Impact KX

Review changes in financial
knowledge, skills, attitudes
and behaviour over time
BB ES RIS R B A
i BRERITARENES

Perceptions ¥k
Measure awareness,
perceptions and recall of our
messages and initiatives as
well as feedback and
expectations towards the IEC
HEARHABEERERN
Rl BRANR » UREEM
HERMEPE

\_

Reach BZMH

Measure the reach of the
IEC’s programmes and
resources
HERXSEERERK
BEME

_/

Kong population over time; exploring new research approaches to
ascertain behavioural change as a result of financial education
programmes, and building closer links with international
counterparts to keep abreast of best practices in research

and evaluation.

Understanding Financial Literacy
in Schools

It is widely recognised that financial education should be provided
as early as possible in individuals’ lives to equip the next
generation with the skills and understanding they need to become
confident and informed financial consumers and investors.

To better promote and support the learning and teaching of
financial literacy in schools, the IEC initiated a qualitative research
study to understand how financial literacy is currently taught in
schools and to gauge the expectations of students, teachers,
parents and education practitioners. Alongside desk-based
research, a total of 14 focus groups and nine in-depth interviews
were conducted from November 2013 to February 2014.

D ESREBMHEHITREENTE R
HEREXEYERRNHE - UEERE
MR R R AT A o

HEENN T RIZVHE

RRAZAREREZERFRHESHEGTHE
BT —REHZEAFHORITMASE » KRR
EERARABEOUELEAREBNTBREN
HEENREE -

BTHEBRXESERETSHENHKS - &M
BT —IEBEMR 0 LT REBERET
TRIBFHENRR - URBE - T - XK
REBRFEESHESRIBPMHENHE - BIX
FEMFEN2013F11 B E20145F 21T >
BRTY ERHREIN - BT T1AREEN N
AR QRN °
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Research and Evaluation
R B FT L

Our study found that although there are financial literacy elements
in the current school curriculum, the implementation is scattered
across different school subjects, while some subjects are optional.
Also, there is no dedicated staff support or central coordination for
financial education and the learning needs of students are not
addressed holistically.

All respondents — students, teachers, parents, experts and
practitioners from industry associations, public bodies and
non-government organisations and community groups —
considered financial education in schools very important and
supported a holistic and integrated approach to facilitate it.

Students admitted that they had insufficient financial knowledge
and capability and hoped to improve their self-control in spending,
while teachers conceded that students’ financial literacy was
inadequate and agreed on the need for more integrated education.
Parents said they welcomed financial education in schools.

In view of these findings, the IEC has been developing
programmes, tools and resources aligned to the existing school

curriculum where possible with a view to supporting and enhancing

financial education in schools.

MERETHARSERREC RESREH
HENRTER  HRAZTH S HRTEER
a0 B REBREERE o o BR
RRERETEENSS - LHUZERE
BENSHENRERTE -

FEZHE (BIEEE B0 RR-#HBE
o R AEHBRFBFASMNEREEEN
THEENER) AR EERETZEME
FREAERANSRENHAERREEMN -

ARG EGE A K £ BRI A A 5E
TR WHBREERREFEE - HET
RABEEFENRSHBFARNEED - BE
BLAEETAZEER2HENAE - THRE
BIECDERIET S RIBMHE -

HMBBUBEMRNER  EEFRREIS
ERFENESREPEN  TANHEER
Bz AR SRET SR HE -

All respondents considered financial education in schools very important and

. @ NOlistic and
integrated approach

to facilitate it.

FrE RS EYRREERMETEEMREREZN B R © B2

HERREEW -

Review of Financial Education Initiatives in
Hong Kong

To help the IEC develop effective resources and communications,
as well as to facilitate the work of financial education practitioners
and other educators, we conducted a review of financial education
initiatives in Hong Kong. The study aimed to cover all initiatives,
resources and research products designed to improve people’s
financial capability which are available in the public domain.

Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2014-15
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The study found that the 130 organisations that we interviewed
offered 292 financial education initiatives between July 2011 and
June 2013. These organisations are mainly banks, insurance
companies, community groups, securities companies, independent
financial advisers and industry associations.

The bulk of these initiatives targeted the general public (37%) and
financial consumers and investors (38%), while more specific
sectors such as students, parents and lower-income groups only
accounted for a small percentage.

The initiatives focused mainly on investing and the financial
markets. There were relatively fewer education initiatives on
investor or consumer rights and responsibilities, insurance and
money management.

Websites were by far the most popular approach (38%), followed
by talks and seminars (27%) and online tools (12%).

The review showed that resources are allocated unevenly in terms
of themes and target audiences, implying that a more coordinated
approach may be beneficial to advancing financial education in
Hong Kong.

A Qualitative Study among Financial
Consumers who are New to Hong Kong

While Hong Kong people are the IEC’s primary target audience,
we are also mindful of the needs of consumers and retail investors
who are new to Hong Kong, including non-residents who travel to
Hong Kong and participate in the local financial markets, as well as
new immigrants adapting to life here.

To better understand these needs, we conducted a qualitative study
based on interviews with a sample of 25 financial intermediaries
who frequently interact with financial consumers new to Hong

Kong. This indirect approach provided an alternative channel to
understand how these consumers use various financial, investment
and insurance services and products.

The study found that the financial consumers who are new to Hong
Kong are generally attracted by the diversity of financial products
available and they have a high level of trust in the regulation of the
local financial markets. However, many are not familiar with the
features of the more complex financial products that are either

not available or are known under different names in their home
countries. In addition, they may benefit from a better understanding
of the Hong Kong financial markets as well as of the details and
procedures involved in financial transactions.
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Get ready

I’'m interested in taking part in future IEC activities

and hope to learn more about the pros and cons of different
financial products as well. It's good for everyone to learn and
share financial knowledge with our kids or grandchildren as well
as to encourage them to develop proper money habits as early
as possible.

HERB2MREERBEDULSEERNES - hFE
E—FSTHRAREMEMRNEHRMERE - RABAXMEZ
BEEZSRENNE  YREMNFLIERZI= -
SRt MEEEXERNVIZENEE -

Cheung Yuk Ka,
housewife

Once Upon a Dime
pre-screening
workshop participant
RER > REXHF
[EIF AR RS |
BERAZESME




Working with Stakeholders and Partners

HEFNERBHEEESF

To enhance financial literacy, the IEC seeks collaboration with stakeholders in
Hong Kong and abroad to improve the delivery of our financial education

initiatives through long-term, strategic planning.

RINET RN MIZT FBMEE D - REEBHE OB EAM g R & B
TalE BARENRKBIERE  UWE—TESRMAMETHSRIEVHEF 2 -

In Hong Kong, we have obtained the full support of all four financial
regulators, the Education Bureau, and the financial services
industry, all of whose representatives are part of the governing
Executive Committee of the IEC. We also engage and collaborate
with government departments and agencies, consumer and
investor representatives, and education and training providers.

Through the IEC’s Executive Committee, Advisory Committee

and Advisory Groups, we seek input and gain collaboration on
specific financial education issues. For example three supporting
regulators, the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance, the
Securities and Futures Commission and the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority, worked with the IEC to develop resources and
communications to assist investors to make informed decisions
regarding investment-linked assurance schemes.

Advisory Committee and Groups

We have established a standing Advisory Committee comprising
financial education experts and practitioners from financial services
institutions, financial regulators, industry associations, educational
organisations and consumer advocacy bodies. Their expertise not
only provides different views on how our education work will affect
the public, but also gives the IEC critical insights into market needs
and developments.

As the work of the Steering Committee for Understanding
Financial Literacy in Schools came to an end, a new Advisory
Group for Financial Education Programmes for Schools was
set up to consult on issues affecting the relevant target groups
as well as the upcoming financial education programmes that
the IEC will develop.
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Advisory Committee BHEES
Members £Z8
Name ##& Organisation #E&1%

KO Yuk Kwai, Cecilia (Chairperson) (to 22 June 2014)
aEHE (X&) (E20145F6H22H1E)

Investor Education Centre

REEHB RO

KNEEBONE, David Philip (Chairperson) (from 23 June 2014)
Z1E#E (£E) (B201456H23H18)

Investor Education Centre

REBHAEPO

CHAN King Cheung Media

PRSH BEEAALT

CHIAM Sou Hong (to 29 August 2014) Financial Dispute Resolution Centre
&Ll (220145688290 1) TR TR

CHIU Siu Po, Steve
HE

Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong

BRUBREMES

FRASER Stuart (from 5 June 2013)

The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers

A ER (H2013F6A5H ) EBRIGEBS

FUNG Wei Lung, Brian The Hong Kong Securities Association
BIREE BEBRESEHS

LEE Chor Fong, Karen The Hong Kong Association of Banks
FES BEBRTAE

LEE Kam Wing, Bruno Hong Kong Investment Funds Association
b BEEREES NS

LO Wai Keung, David Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
SGEE BB REEFERAT

Dr MAK Sui Choi, Billy Academia

BRI BMRAL

NG Tze Wai (from 8 January 2015) Financial Dispute Resolution Centre
KRFHE (F2015F1A8RHE) TR A SRR

Dr SIU Mei Fung, Gloria Finance Professional

wmEREL ERAAL

WONG Wan Ming, Rosa Consumer Council

=R HEEEZES

YIP Yuk Ping, Elsie Hong Kong Police Force

X% BEREKE

Alternate members are listed on the next page.
RBEEREFRER -
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners
BEROERBHBERSE

Alternate members {RHZES

Name ##& Organisation #B& 1
CHAN Jeffrey The Hong Kong Securities Association
PRLIE BERSEDHS

CHEUNG Man To, Raymond (to 4 December 2014)
IRICEE (22014 128481t)

Financial Dispute Resolution Centre
SRV AT

HO Pak Ling, Berlin

Hong Kong Police Force

A= EBEKE

HO Yiu Cheong, Sanly Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
g EERGREEMBRAE

PAN San Kong, Terry Hong Kong Investment Funds Association
BT FEREESENE

ROBINSON Andrew John Lever (from 5 June 2013)

(FH201356 A5H )

The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers
BBREERS

SHUM Cheuk Yiu

The Hong Kong Association of Banks

SR BEBIRITAE

TAM Sau Ngor, Vera Consumer Council

BB HEEEZES

TSE Yue Hong Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong
fipieded BRUBRIAMBES

WONG So Fong, Ellen (from 8 January 2015)
EZE% (H2015F1H8H )

Financial Dispute Resolution Centre
SRIA 4 FAHE O
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Advisory Group: Financial Education Programmes

for Youth

Objective: Advise on the development of financial education
programmes, tools and resources for tertiary students and young

B EEmMENRBER/ I

B AREERAPOHEAREERFS
ARHRNESMBHHETE - TANDR -
USSR P NETRIRIR S - I RAET

adults that encourage them to plan their finances from a young age KIRETEEEFIEE o
and promote responsible attitudes and habits.

Members £8

Name #%& Organisation ##EB&8

YIP Damian (Chairperson)
G (X&)

Investor Education Centre
REEHB RO

Dr CHAN Yiu Kong, Ringo (from 1 December 2014)
PREXIE L (F2014F12A188E)

HKU School of Professional and Continuing Education
ERREEXEBSR

CHOW Wan Chi, Vincci
ARz

Christian Action
HEHBTE

HUNG Wan Kau, Albert (to 30 November 2014)
HEEIR (220145118308 1E)

HKU School of Professional and Continuing Education
BERREEREMBSR

Dr LAM Wai Leung
HERBL

The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
BEBREARE

LAM Yik Tin, Miranda (to 30 November 2014)
thZZ8l (22014511 A30H k)

Investor Education Centre
REEHB RO

LAU Pui Ling, Selina

The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers

w3 L E

LAU Sio Kuan, Vivian JA Asia Pacific Limited

21 1 JA EREEE

Dr LLOYD Alison Elizabeth The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

RERFELT BBEI KRR

SHUM Lun Kwong, Stewart Working Family and Student Financial Assistance Agency
SlwHk EBRERBEEYEHE

Dr WONG Chi Tim City University of Hong Kong

BEEFEL BB ARE

WONG Ho Yu, Patricia (to 13 November 2014)
EHAH (£2014511 8138 1b)

Investor Education Centre
REEHB RO

Dr YAN Ting Kwan
BHREREL

Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Chai Wan)
EBEXHAER (50E)

YAU Kwan Pang (from 14 November 2014)
EREENE (FH2014F11 5148 %8)

Investor Education Centre
BREEBEHEHL

YUNG Lai Ping
SEE

Caritas Family Crisis Line & Education Centre
PE MBI — EREEREEPL
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners

BEODERBHREREE

Advisory Group: Financial Education Programmes

for Grassroots

Objective: Advise on the development of financial education
programmes, tools and resources to equip the grassroots, or
those who have experienced lower levels of formal education

EEATERENHEZANE

B AREFHEPOUHESRIZNHE
T8 TARERREMHES  BEETRH

BEAMERELBRENEIREREN

and income, with skills and knowledge to manage their personal 15 % s o

finances and make informed financial decisions.

Members £8

Name %

Organisation ##E &8

YIP Damian (Chairperson)

Investor Education Centre

B (X&) REZHBE RO

CHAN Betty Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority

BT &1 BEMLABESHEAEER

Professor CHAN L.W., Cecilia Department of Social Work and Social Administration,

REEHIR The University of Hong Kong
BERRBUHETIFREETHER

CHAN Wing-Kin The Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong

PRk 62 BRNERSS

CHING Pui Yuk The Women’s Foundation

BtE FrEEE

CHOI Suk Mun, Anny Investor Education Centre

37k REEHBEH L

CHOW 0iTing Hong Kong East Family Development Service Centre,

RAEE Baptist Oi Kwan Social Service

REEEEHERBEBERFERRRBERRBHO

FUNG K.M., David

St. James’ Settlement

BRI EHRRREAS
KWOK ChiYing Caritas Family Crisis Support Centre
EpETE B 2 [ A5 BT

LAU Wing Kam, Vicky (to 30 October 2014)
gI3kE (£2014%10A30H 1b)

Investor Education Centre
BEEBEHEHL

LEUNG Kai Lik HKFTU Occupational Retraining Centre
REEN THERERIIHPO

PONG Po Lam Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong
REE K ERMBRIMES
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Advisory Group: Financial Education Programmes

for the Elderly

Objective: Advise on the development of financial education
programmes, tools and resources for mature financial consumers

RESRENHBHEA N

B AREEFEDLHEARFRNEHE
HEENREERHSNERIENHAETE
TEREIR - LAt E 47 o 57 EI3R AR AN

and investors to help them better plan their retirement and assist TEBEL o
them in their financial management.

Members £8

Name #%& Organisation #8518

YIP Damian (Chairperson) Investor Education Centre
SR (XR) REEHBEH L

Professor CHAN Cheung Ming, Alfred
PREBAHUIR

Elderly Commission
REEBREES

CHAN Fuk Lung
PRIERE

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Healthy Budgeting Family
Debt Counselling Centre
RE=RRREBVREHSH O

CHAN Man Yee, Grace (from 1 January 2015)
BRXHE (F2015%181H#)

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
BB EREHS

FUNG Chui Sim
TSR E

The Salvation Army Senior Citizens Talent Advancement
Project Kwun Tong Centre
it EE L R EBED O

HUI Wai Ling (to 12 February 2015)
FFEIR (22015F2H128 1)

Caritas Hong Kong — Services for the Elderly
ERPERERE

LEE Wah Lun, Rannie (from 2 February 2015)
R (B2015F2H20 1)

The Hong Kong Association of Banks
BEBRITAE

LEUNG Kai King
RERE

Caritas Hong Kong — Services for the Elderly
EBABZERS

LEUNG Yee Mei (from 1 January 2015)
R45E (H2015F181H#E)

The Hong Kong Society for the Aged
BEEEREABIE

PAU Siu Ming (to 18 October 2014)
fJkgs (220145108188 1E)

Commercial Crime Bureau, Hong Kong Police Force
EBEBREMERZAEHN

POON Yuen Shun, Vincent
EHE

Investor Education Centre
BREEHEDOL

TAM Wing Sze (from 19 October 2014)
iEikss (H20145F108 190 %)

Commercial Crime Bureau, Hong Kong Police Force
EREREMERRATH

TANG Pik Yu (to 31 December 2014)

Hong Kong Association of Banks

BEm (£2014F12831H1E) BERITAE

WONG Fan Foung, Jackson Elderly Commission

=HNE RESBHEES

WONG Lai Choi Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui Welfare Council Limited
=2 EBENERAHEEMRAF

YU Lai Wan (from 13 February 2015)
REE (H2015F2H13H#8)

Caritas Hong Kong — Services for the Elderly
EEBRAFZERYE
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BEROERBHBRESHE

Advisory Group: Financial Education Programmes

for Schools

Objective: Advise on the development of financial education
programmes, tools and resources for students that encourage
them to manage their finances from a young age and promote
responsible attitudes and habits. The tenure of office of the Group

started on 27 November 2014.

Members £8
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Name ##

Organisation #iE &1

YIP Damian (Chairperson)

Investor Education Centre

HE (XE) REEHB RO

Dr CHAN Kar Yee, Grace Education Bureau

FExRREEL HER

DING Pak Hei Federation of Parent-Teacher Associations of
TH%H the Central and Western District Limited

TRABRRIMEHEAERAT

HSIAO Chun Mo

Ning Po No. 2 College

HRIRE BERE—PE
KWOK Chi Kay, Peter Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui
R BEBEQRE
KWOK Shing Education Bureau
L BER
LAMYikTin, Miranda Investor Education Centre
RZESH REEHBE DL
LEE Lai Mui, Agnes Ma Tau Chung Government Primary School
ZES (Hung Hom Bay)
FEREM/NE (AHWE)
LUI Kit STFA Seaward Woo College
=4 IEE R H e BRI R 2
WONG Wai Yu, Michael Hong Kong Association of the Heads of
=HiER Secondary Schools

BRTERRE

WOO CHAN Tak Chi, Bonnie

Committee on Home-School Co-operation

HAPREEE XEHERSIFEEZESS
Dr YU Wai Mui, Christina The Hong Kong Institute of Education
pEEEL EBHEEMKR
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Steering Committee: Understanding Financial

Literacy in Schools

TNEERMBEMMREERES
BEE (B BERNSBEMHE) AEHEN

With the completion of the IEC Research: Understanding Financial = EEENTHCR2014E7B8A &R -
Literacy in Schools, the tenure of office of the Committee ended on

8 July 2014.

Members £8

Name ##&

Organisation #18 &

LAMYik Tin, Miranda (Chairperson)

Investor Education Centre

HZES (£/F) REEHBEH L

Dr CHAN Kar Yee, Grace Education Bureau

PR SEEL BER

CHAN Sai Hai, Angus Hong Kong Monetary Authority
BR 8 EEREREER

HO Sui Mei, May
A% E

Federation of Parent-Teacher Association of
Yuen Long District Limited
THERRAMEHSERA T

HSIAO Chun Mo
RIRE

Ning Po No. 2 College
BRE_FE

KWOK LaiYin
MBEE

Investor Education Centre
BREEHBE R

LAM Yat Fung, James
HEE

Hong Kong Subsidized Secondary Schools Council
BERUPERS

LAW Ka Mei
BEX

Investor Education Centre
REEHBRL

LEE Lai Mui, Agnes
ZEs

Ma Tau Chung Government Primary School
(Hung Hom Bay)
FEREEV/NE (AWE)

TSUI Kwan Yuk

Hong Kong Association for Science and Mathematics

BREE Education Limited

BERBEHEEEERAT
YIP Damian Investor Education Centre
-4--1:);| REEHBE R
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Working with Stakeholders and Partners

BEODERBHREREE

International engagement

The IEC contributes a great deal to and receives a lot of value from
international collaboration. The knowledge gained from informal as
well as formal contact with overseas colleagues has considerable

influence on our work in Hong Kong.

The two main organisations offering opportunities for international
collaboration are the OECD International Network for Financial
Education (INFE) and the International Organization of Securities
Commissions (I0OSCO) Committee on Retail Investors.

OECD International Network for Financial Education

The IEC is a full-member of the INFE which comprises
approximately 90 institutions from 70 economies committed to
enhancing and promoting awareness of financial education

worldwide.

Regular exchanges of information and opinions are instrumental in
helping to address issues such as national strategies for financial
education, financial education in schools, empowering women
through financial education, measuring financial literacy and
evaluating financial education methodologies.

The General Manager of the IEC is the INFE’s co-ordinator for
Hong Kong and a member of current INFE sub-groups focused on
long-term savings and investments and financial education for

micro, small and medium-sized enterprises.

Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2014-15

IEC General Manager Mr David Kneebone
moderated a Building Financial Capability
through Education session at an international
conference held in Hong Kong in March 2015 to
promote financial education among low-income
people in global supply chains.
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IOSCO Committee on Retail Investors

The Committee’s main mandates are to conduct IOSCO policy
work on retail investor education and financial literacy and advise
the IOSCO Board on emerging retail investor protection matters.

As a member of the Committee, which includes representatives
from 32 economies, the IEC is currently helping to produce
materials on anti-fraud messages and investment risk education.

In addition, over the past 12 months, the IEC has hosted
government officials and academics from mainland China, the
Netherlands, Singapore and the OECD, while IEC staff have
contributed and met with financial education colleagues in Japan,
New Zealand, Singapore, Thailand and the United Kingdom.

Collaboration with mainland China

With the steady increase in economic integration and cooperation
between Hong Kong and the Mainland, including the launch of the
Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, the IEC has continued to
exchange experiences and strengthen its relationships across
both markets.

The IEC joined the Securities and Futures Commission’s (SFC)
Stock Connect working group and participated in its first meeting
between the SFC and its mainland counterpart, the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC), on 30 April 2014.

This resulted in a collaboration agreement in June 2014 between
the CSRC'’s Investor Protection Bureau and the IEC regarding
Stock Connect. Then in October, an IEC representative presented
our Stock Connect education initiatives to over 100 market
participants at a training session organised by the CSRC in
Shanghai.
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Report of the Directors
EEHREES

The directors present herewith their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Principal place of business

Investor Education Centre (IEC) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal
place of business at 21/F, Cheung Kong Center, 2 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the IEC are to enhance the understanding
and knowledge of members of the public about the benefits, risks
and liabilities associated with purchasing financial services and
products; to promote understanding by the public of the importance
of making informed financial decisions and taking responsibilities
for those decisions as financial consumers and investors.

Financial statements

The financial results for the year ended 31 March 2015 and the
state of the IEC’s affairs as at 31 March 2015 are set out in the
audited financial statements presented on pages 66 to 80.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

CHENG Kwok Hon, Leonard (Chairman)

CHAN Sun Hung

CHAN Tze Ching, Ignatius

CHU Lap Kiu, Carmen (appointed on 1 September 2014)

CHENG Yan Chee

KNEEBONE, David Philip (appointed on 23 June 2014)

LEE Sha Lun, Sheridan

LEE Wing Sing, Vincent (resigned with effect from 1 September 2014)
WAN Chi Yiu, Andrew
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Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

Except for a contract of employment with Mr Kneebone, David
Philip, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the IEC, or any of its holding company or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a director of the IEC had a material
interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

Auditors

KPMG retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG
as auditors of the IEC is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHENG Kwok Hon, Leonard
22 May 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of Investor Education Centre

HREEHEDPONREB L ZEMBE

(Incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

(EERETMEINERERLR)

We have audited the financial statements of Investor Education
Centre (the IEC) set out on pages 66 to 80 which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement
of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial

statements

The directors of the IEC are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the IEC as at 31 March 2015 and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 May 2015
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
TEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BZE2015F3A31HILFE (B : Bx)

Note 2015 2014
Wt EE $ $
Income A
Recoveries from the Securities RESRPESHER
and Futures Commission 2c 47,500,953 45,604,379 == E L]
Expenses X
Premises WAEHT
Rent 2,880,000 2,547,097 HE
Rates, management fees and others 449,017 371,827 = - EEBERHEAM
Staff costs 4 18,531,954 15,140,387 ASEH
Education programmes 5 19,528,189 20,297,872 HBE1EH
Other expenses 6 5,976,821 7,129,080 Hihr i
Depreciation 7 134,972 118,116 e
47,500,953 45,604,379
Result for the period before taxation - -  FEWRAIEE
Taxation 3 - = i
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - FEZHWALE
The notes on pages 69 to 80 form part of these financial SE69E EFB0E MM R A MR ERH
statements. — I o
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Statement of Financial Position
B #E AR R

As at 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
20156383118 (BEfy : #B)

Note 2015 2014
B $ $
Non-current assets FERBEE
Fixed assets 7 106,925 191,327 EEEE
Current assets RENEE
Cash at bank and in hand 7,684,504 3,907,537 RITREFRS
Prepayments and deposits 8 226,012 552,744 EAFRERRE
7,910,516 4,460,281
Current liabilities nEAE
Accrued charges and other payables 9 3,501,441 4,351,220 FEET & AR H At T FRIE
Amount due to the Securities and BNFESRIEER
Futures Commission 4,516,000 300,388 BT EENRIE
8,017,441 4,651,608
Net current liabilities (106,925) (191,327) uu.E)JEJ*I?#E
Total assets less current liabilities - - EELERREAE
Net assets - - BEFRE
We have not prepared a separate statement of changes in equity A FE RN (2B - HI KM
as there have been no changes during the year. WERESTHRHEEREER o
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on A2015FE5 422 AEE BRI 3 Y -
22 May 2015 and signed on its behalf by YHETHATRERS
CHENG Kwok Hon, Leonard KNEEBONE, David Philip  HBEd;%E =8
Chairman Director *E 5%

The notes on pages 69 to 80 form part of these financial
statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
HERERX

For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BZE2015F3A31HILEFE (Bfy : )

2015 2014
$ $
Cash flows from operating activities EXTHMCIBNRERE
Result for the year - = FEXEE
Depreciation 134,972 118,116 e
Decrease / (increase) in prepayments
and deposits 326,732 (370,299) BARERRSRD / (38m)
Increase in amount due to the Securities RERSRHESKERZES
and Futures Commission 4,215,612 1,071,122 B FE Lk =k T8 9 422 0
(Decrease) / increase in accrued charges FEETE AR E B FRIEM
and other payables (849,779) 2,528,935 R4 / 18
Net cash generated from operating activities 3,827,537 3,347,874 REBEETINRLSTHE
Cash flows from investing activities RETHACIBNRERE
Fixed assets purchased (50,570) (212,942) BABEERE
Net cash used in investing activities (50,570) (212,942) HRBRETHNRSFHE
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,776,967 3,134,932 BE&RZERFRLEEWIZMFEE
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year 3,907,537 772,605 FEBEKEBEESREFBELER
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year 7,684,504 3,907,537 FEKREBRERERRLIELH
Analysis of the balance of cash and R RERRLEB AR
cash equivalents Xl
Cash at bank and in hand 7,684,504 3,907,537 RITREFRE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% SR R BT &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(Bfy : BT

(a)

Status and principal activities

The IEC was incorporated on 19 October 2012 in Hong Kong
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance as a company
limited by guarantee and not having a share capital. The
address of its registered office is 21/F, Cheung Kong Center,
2 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the IEC are to enhance the
understanding and knowledge of members of the public about
the benefits, risks and liabilities associated with purchasing
financial services and products; to promote understanding by
the public of the importance of making informed financial
decisions and taking responsibilities for those decisions as
financial consumers and investors.

Under the provisions of the IEC’s Memorandum of
Association, every member shall, in the event of the IEC being
wound up, contribute to the assets of the IEC an amount not
exceeding $10. At 31 March 2015, the IEC had 1 member.

Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The IEC has prepared its financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs)
(including applicable Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASSs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). In previous
years, the IEC prepared its financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(including applicable International Accounting Standards
(IASs) and Interpretations) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Although HKFRSs have been fully converged with IFRSs in all
material respects since 1 January 2005, these financial
statements are the first published financial statements in which
the IEC makes an explicit and unreserved statement of
compliance in accordance with HKFRSs. Therefore, in
preparing these financial statements the IEC has given due
consideration to the requirements of HKFRS 1, First-time
adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. For
this purpose the date of the IEC’s transition to HKFRSs was
determined to be 1 April 2013, being the beginning of the
earliest period for which the IEC presents full comparative
information in these financial statements.

(a)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt RS SR R MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(B : #BwT)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (continued)

With due regard to the IEC’s accounting policies in previous
periods and the requirements of HKFRS 1, we have concluded
that no adjustments were required to the amounts reported
under IFRSs as at the date of transition to HKFRSs or in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2014. Accordingly, these
financial statements include for the first time a statement of
compliance with HKFRSs, without adjustment to the IEC’s
financial position, the IEC’s financial performance or cash
flows either at the date of transition to HKFRSs or at the end
of latest period presented in accordance with IFRSs.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the IEC. Note 2(k) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the IEC for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

The IEC has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 15).

These financial statements also comply with the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The IEC prepares these financial statements on a going
concern basis notwithstanding that the stated current liabilities
are in excess of the stated current assets at 31 March 2015.
The Securities and Futures Commission (SFC), the ultimate
holding entity, has given an undertaking to continue to provide
such financial assistance as is necessary to maintain the IEC
as a going concern.

We have prepared these financial statements using the
historical cost as the measurement basis.

70 Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2014-15

2.
(a)

(b)

FESHEE @

AREHE @
BRDEZRATUELEHERANEET
BUR K (BB IERELER) F15RHR
T RRERREBRERE (BRUH
HREEL) ERBZBEE (FBUHR
HEEH) AHAEZE2014F3831 AL
FENSFEFELAE - At - RPHE®REK
BEREAENE (BBMBHREER) B
BH > MAHRE (ERFHREERD
2IEBEBEZ (FRYHHREEL)
RSB IR 4E R 2 B (VA0 B 3%
AR~ APOBMBRRFBSREF

e

BRETEMABES TE TERD LN
BRI BB ERERR AU HIRE R RAN
AT RAEBTTH (BB BIRELEL) -
FEERARLEBNEERNREREL
AT BB TR S| B AT LES
SRS BORE S - S RAMBERER
RRER - BEAERESIRHEE2(K) °

AR REAE SRS R B E R
LRV RIS RE (2R/MEE15) ©

FEBHET BT E B (R ERG) 18
FERBEER -

HBROEREE
BER2015F3A31 BAFIHNRE A
BERAMIIHNRBEE - APOHR
FECEEERRAPHERE - APOH
BREREBESRVESKERZSS
(RES) CARTATENRMBE
By » UERAROGEEE -

BB LKA BT EBHNEERRANE
]k e



(b)

()

(d)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

We review the estimates and underlying assumptions on

an ongoing basis. We recognise revisions to accounting
estimates in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Recognition of income

We recognise income in the statement of comprehensive
income provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the IEC and we can measure reliably the revenue
and cost.

Recoveries from the SFC

The IEC’s income is reimbursement from the SFC for
expenditure incurred. We recognise recoveries from the SFC
on an accrual basis.

Employee benefits

We accrue salaries and allowances, paid annual leave and
contributions to defined contribution plans in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt RS SR R MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(EEfx : %)

(e)

()

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

We state fixed assets at cost less accumulated depreciation,
which is calculated to write off their costs, less their estimated
residual value, if any, over their anticipated useful lives on a
straight-line basis, and impairment losses (see note 2(j)). We
use the following useful lives:

e Furniture and fixtures 5 years
» Office equipment 5 years
e Personal computers and software 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, we consider
that the following are related parties of the IEC:

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the IEC if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the IEC;
(i) has significant influence over the IEC; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the IEC or the IEC’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the IEC if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the IEC are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

Investor Education Centre Annual Report 2014-15
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2.
()

()

(h)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the IEC or an entity
related to the IEC.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand.

Prepayments and deposits

We initially recognise prepayments and deposits at fair value
and thereafter state these at amortised cost less impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which we state them

at cost.

We measure impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted where
the effect of discounting is material.

Prepayments and deposits and other receivables are loans
and receivables in accordance with the determination in Hong
Kong Accounting Standard (HKAS) 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt RS SR R MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(EEfx : %)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Accrued charges and other payables

We initially recognise accrued charges and other payables at
fair value and thereafter state these at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
we state them at cost.

Other payables and accrued charges are financial liabilities
measured at amortised costs in accordance with the

determination in HKAS 39, unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(j) Impairment

We review the carrying amounts of the IEC’s assets at the end
of each accounting period to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, we
estimate the asset’s recoverable amount. We recognise in the
statement of comprehensive income an impairment loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses for receivables whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote are recorded using an
allowance account. When the IEC is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

(k) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the IEC. Of these, none of the
developments are relevant to the IEC’s financial statements.

The IEC has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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(b)

Taxation

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the IEC did not have any taxable profit.

3. BE

() FIRAFOLEAERBFE - EHILEA
B BRSBTS o

There is no deferred tax liability or unrecognized deferred (b) AU ETMEERIBE ERAEIN
tax assets. BEERIBEE o
Staff costs 4. A\EEH
2015 2014
$ $
Salaries, wages and other benefits 17,753,173 14,591,977 %< TERHMER
Contributions to defined contribution plan 778,781 548,410 HREMEFFTEINHER
18,531,954 15,140,387

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation is as follows:

EEMEWBEREBETE (D ERAG) F3831%
RARE (MEBEESFRER) RO F25089
BREMT

2015 2014
$ $
Salaries and other emoluments 1,493,996 1,828,746 #HE R EHMENE
Retirement benefits 58,500 - RIARER
1,552,496 1,828,746
Education programmes 5. BFHEH
2015 2014
$ $
Mass media programmes and campaigns 14,217,234 13,281,485  ARIEEEIEE MIEE
Website 2,398,037 3,431,066 gk
Outreach activities 2,023,447 1,893,990 HNEIEE
Education kits and souvenirs 480,721 576,431 HMERL =M
Publications 408,750 1,114,900 F/#
19,528,189 20,297,872
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(EEfx : %)

6. Other expenses 6. Hitixxi
2015 2014
$ $
Auditor’s remuneration 147,100 149,500  ZEETENE
Professional and other services 3,049,244 3,764,629 EXERHMRKER
Publicity and external relations 1,336,919 2,015,003 ESERHINES
Information systems and services 1,025,876 973,643 EMRHEKRE
General office and insurance 184,104 144,695 —BRAERIRRBEH
Training and development 233,578 81,710 HEIIRER
5,976,821 7,129,080
7. Fixed assets 7. BIE&E
Personal
Office  computers and
equipment software Total
WAERE  AABHRES it
$ $ $
Cost A
At 1 April 2014 8,366 349,328 357,694 H2014F4 818
Additions - 50,570 50,570 NE
At 31 March 2015 8,366 399,898 408,264 12015F3A31H
Accumulated depreciation ZRITE
At 1 April 2014 1,673 164,694 166,367 H2014F4 811
Charge for the year 1,673 133,299 134,972 FEWRE
At 31 March 2015 3,346 297,993 301,339 1H2015F3A31H
Net book value IRELRE
At 31 March 2015 5,020 101,905 106,925 72015F3A31H
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Fixed assets (continued)

7. EIEEE ®)

Personal
Office  computers and
equipment software Total
WAERE BEASHERRMG B3
$ $ $
Cost A
At 1 April 2013 = 144,752 144,752 M2013F481H
Additions 8,366 204,576 212,942 NE
At 31 March 2014 8,366 349,328 357,694 H2014F3H31H
Accumulated depreciation REBTE
At 1 April 2013 = 48,251 48,251 M2013F4818
Charge for the year 1,673 116,443 118,116 FERE
At 31 March 2014 1,673 164,694 166,367 MR2014%3H31H
Net book value IREFHE
At 31 March 2014 6,693 184,634 191,327 M2014%3H831H

Prepayments and deposits

All the prepayments and deposits are expected to be

recovered within one year.

Accrued charges and other payables

All accrued charges and other payables are expected to be

settled within one year.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
of the IEC’s current liabilities at the end of the accounting
period, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows and the earliest date the IEC can be required to pay:

8. JANMEREE
AN RERZS HENE—FR

m o

9. EBrtEAREMENKIA

FRBRERtE AR AN RRIRII AR
E—FRBE-

TRAFIAPOESTTHERERR
BENRBESNEHE  2REERSY
HARTERERERAH O ATREARER

RHENRFEAE :
2015

Within 3 months More than 3
or on demand months but less
Carrying =@EAR than 1 year

amount B E R E R =ER#% Indefinite

IREE BERS S 14 BE—FRZIHA E|EEREA

$ $ $ $

Accrued charges and P& B R HAb e
other payables 3,501,441 3,501,441 - - ;IE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(EEfx : %)
9. Accrued charges and other payables (continued) 9. EFERREMERFKIE @
2014
Within 3 months More than 3
oron demand months but less
Carrying =EARA than 1 year
amount B IRER =@A#% Indefinite
MREE BERE S A 18— FREIH EHEEEIHA
$ $ $ $
Accrued charges and EstE AR EMmES
other payables 4,351,220 4,351,220 - = IR
10. Commitment for the use of office premises 10. BARME 3 2 ZERORIE
According to the licence agreement with the SFC, the IEC’s RIEARROEEES ST NERTE
total future minimum non-cancellable lease payments for the RN IRFE A B IR R KR I B AEAE S
six-month early termination notice period are as follows: AT A E BEA S ST
2015 2014
$ $
Within one year 1,650,000 1,650,000 —F LR
During the year ended 31 March 2015, $3,300,000 (2014: EHZE2015F3A31HILFER » KM
$2,918,548) was recognised as premises expense paid to the EEERERAERA S TRES
SFC in the statement of comprehensive income. B9 AN = # J5 3 H 53,300,0007T
(20144 : 2,918,5487T) ©
11. Related party transactions
There are related party relationships with the SFC, the 11.BAERRS

ultimate holding entity. During the year the company paid
$384,000 (2014: $384,000) accountancy service fee,
$305,833 (2014: $300,000) human resources and training
support fees and $768,000 (2014: $768,000) website hosting
and maintenance fees to the SFC. Further, certain expenses
amounting to $991,964 (2014: $2,972,858) were paid by the
SFC on behalf of the IEC during the year. The IEC has
reimbursed the SFC for these expenses. Directors’
remuneration is disclosed in note 4.

Other than these transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the IEC entered into
no other material related party transactions.
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12.

13.

14.

Financial risk management

Exposure to credit and liquidity risks arises in the normal
course of the IEC’s business. The IEC is not exposed to any
foreign exchange risk as all transactions and balances are
denominated in HKD. The IEC has no interest bearing assets
or liabilities. The IEC manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

The IEC’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash at bank.
Management’s policy is that cash balances are placed only
with licensed banks in Hong Kong with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial position. In
this regard, the IEC’s credit risk is limited.

The IEC’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2015.

Parent and ultimate controlling party

As at 31 March 2015, the parent and ultimate controlling party
of the IEC is the SFC, which is a statutory body in Hong Kong
and produces financial statements available for public use.

Funding management

The funding of the IEC is managed by its parent and ultimate
controlling party, the SFC, which has agreed to provide
continual financial support and adequate funds to the IEC to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due. The IEC is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

12.

13.

14.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt RS SR R MY &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(EEfx : %)

15. Possible impact of amendments, new

15. EAHERBE2015F3A31H

standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2015
and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant

to the IEC.

I E i REAISET ~ #EER
REENTESE
HEAMBHROTIEES  HEETHE
DEBAH—EASTURIER - B%E
BT R LR - EBE2015F3A31H
LB R A - RIARAE A B Rk
FLURA - B AEUT AREAROE
BARYIER

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BULT BEAsk 2% BaR
HETEIRAEX
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, 1 January 2016  (EBEIERELER]) 1655 K EI8IRHY
Clarification of acceptable methods of 2016F1 818 183] » BB U EZHITEMEBE %

depreciation and amortisation

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

1 January 2018
2018F181H

(BBMBI|RELER) 9% - £HTA

The IEC is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

IEC’s results of operations and financial position.
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